

**STATE OF LOUISIANA**

AMOUNT DURATION AND SCOPE OF MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES PROVIDED  
LIMITATIONS OF THE AMOUNT, DURATION, AND SCOPE OF CERTAIN ITEMS OF PROVIDED  
MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES ARE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

**CITATION**  
1915(g) of the  
Social Security Act

Medical and Remedial Care and Services  
Item 19

**I. ~~Definition~~**

Case management ~~is defined as~~ services are provided to individuals to assist them in gaining access to the full range of needed services including medical, social, educational, and other support services.

The Department utilizes a broker model of case management in which ~~recipients-~~beneficiaries are referred to other agencies for specific services they need. These services are determined by individualized planning with the ~~recipient-beneficiary~~ and/or the ~~recipient's-beneficiary's~~ family, and other persons/professionals deemed appropriate and provided according to a written comprehensive plan of care ~~that~~which includes measurable person centered outcomes.

~~All case management services must be provided by qualified staff.~~

**Case Management Staff**

Staff providing case management services shall meet the following ~~criteria for education~~ and experience ~~qualification~~criteria:

1. Bachelor's or master's degree in social work from a program accredited by the Council on Social Work Education; or
2. Currently licensed registered nurse (RN), or
3. Bachelor's or master's degree in a human services related field, which includes psychology, education, counseling, social services, sociology, philosophy, family and consumer sciences, criminal justice, rehabilitation services, child development, substance abuse, gerontology, and vocational rehabilitation, or
4. Bachelor's degree in liberal arts or general studies with a concentration of at least 16 hours in one of the fields listed in No. #3 above.

---

TN 21-0021  
August 20, 2021

Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_

Effective Date \_\_\_\_\_

Supersedes  
TN 13-10

**STATE OF LOUISIANA**

AMOUNT DURATION AND SCOPE OF MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES PROVIDED  
LIMITATIONS OF THE AMOUNT, DURATION, AND SCOPE OF CERTAIN ITEMS OF PROVIDED  
MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES ARE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

**Case Management Supervisor**

Staff who provide supervision of case management services shall meet the following criteria for -education and experience qualifications requirements:

1. Bachelor's or master's degree in social work from a program accredited by the Council on Social Work Education and two years of paid post degree experience in providing support coordination services; or
2. Currently licensed RN with at least two years of paid nursing experience, or
3. Bachelor's or master's degree in a human services related field, which includes psychology, education, counseling, social services, sociology, philosophy, family and consumer sciences, criminal justice, rehabilitation services, child development, substance abuse, gerontology, and vocational rehabilitation, and two years of paid post degree experience in providing support coordination services, or
4. Bachelor's degree in liberal arts or general studies with concentration of at least 16 hours in one of fields listed in No. #3 above and two years of paid post degree experience in providing support coordination services.

The provider ~~must~~ shall ensure ~~that there is no duplication of payment,~~ that there is only one primary case manager for each eligible ~~recipient~~ beneficiary and that the ~~recipient~~ beneficiary is not receiving other case management services from any other provider. ~~Procedures are detailed in the Case Management Provider Manual.~~

**~~H. — Services To Be Provided~~**

~~All Medicaid-enrolled e~~Case management agencies are required to perform the core elements of intake, assessment, service planning, linkage, follow-up/monitoring, reassessment, transition/closure, and maintenance of records.

**Electronic Visit Verification**

Case management providers identified by the Department shall use an electronic visit verification (EVV) system designated by the Department for verifying in-home or face-to-face visit requirements for case management services.

**New Opportunities Waiver Recipients**

A minimum of one home visit per quarter to each ~~recipient~~ beneficiary is required. More frequent home visits shall be ~~required to be~~ performed if indicated in the ~~recipient~~ beneficiary's

TN 21-0021  
August 20, 2021

Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_

Effective Date \_\_\_\_\_

Supersedes  
TN 13-09

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT  
MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Attachment 3.1-A  
Item 19, page ~~1a~~21a

**STATE OF LOUISIANA**

AMOUNT DURATION AND SCOPE OF MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES PROVIDED  
LIMITATIONS OF THE AMOUNT, DURATION, AND SCOPE OF CERTAIN ITEMS OF PROVIDED  
MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES ARE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

~~C~~comprehensive ~~Plan of Care~~care plan.

---

TN 21-0021  
August 20, 2021

Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_

Effective Date \_\_\_\_\_

Supersedes  
TN 13-09

**STATE OF LOUISIANA**

AMOUNT DURATION AND SCOPE OF MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES PROVIDED  
LIMITATIONS OF THE AMOUNT, DURATION, AND SCOPE OF CERTAIN ITEMS OF PROVIDED  
MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES ARE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

**Infants and Toddlers with Special Needs**

A minimum of one face-to-face meeting per quarter with each ~~recipient~~beneficiary's family is required. More frequent face-to-face meetings shall ~~be required to be~~ performed if indicated in the ~~recipient~~beneficiary's Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP).

**EPSDT ~~Recipients-Beneficiaries~~ on the ~~Developmentally Disabled (DD)~~ Request for Services Registry**

A minimum of one face-to-face visit per quarter with ~~recipients~~beneficiaries (and their parent or legal guardian) is required. More frequent face-to-face visits shall be ~~required to be~~ performed if indicated in the ~~recipient~~beneficiary's Comprehensive Plan of Carecare plan. Additional face-to-face visits may be performed ~~if needed as deemed medically necessary to obtain services.~~

~~THIS SECTION RESERVED~~

**~~III~~ Selection of Case Management Agency**

~~Recipient~~Beneficiaries have the right to select the provider of their case management services from among the ~~case available~~ agencies enrolled for participation.

**~~IV~~ Standards for Participation**

~~A. In order to participate as a case management services provider in the Medicaid program, an a~~Case management agencyies ~~must shall~~ comply with the following:

~~A. licensure and certification requirements, provider enrollment requirements, case management manual and when applicable, the specific terms of individual contractual performance agreements:~~

1. licensure and certification requirements,
2. provider enrollment requirements,
3. case management manual, and ~~when applicable,~~
4. specific terms of individual contractual performance agreements, when applicable.

B. Separate enrollment is required for each population and LDH designated region that the case management agency plans to service, as well as for each office site it plans to operate. The case management agency may provide services only in the parishes of the LDH region for which approval has been granted.

**~~V~~ Discharge**

Discharge from a case management agency ~~must shall~~ occur when the ~~recipient~~beneficiary no longer requires services, desires to terminate services, becomes ineligible for services, or chooses to transfer to

TN 21-0021  
August 20, 2021

Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_

Effective Date \_\_\_\_\_

Supersedes  
TN 08-13

**STATE OF LOUISIANA**

AMOUNT DURATION AND SCOPE OF MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES PROVIDED  
LIMITATIONS OF THE AMOUNT, DURATION, AND SCOPE OF CERTAIN ITEMS OF PROVIDED  
MEDICAL AND REMEDIAL CARE AND SERVICES ARE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

another case management agency.

---

TN 21-0021  
August 20, 2021

Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_

Effective Date \_\_\_\_\_

Supersedes  
TN 08-13

STATE OF LOUISIANA

---

METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES--OTHER TYPES OF CARE OR SERVICE LISTED IN SECTION 1905 (A) OF THE ACT THAT ARE INCLUDED IN THE PROGRAM UNDER THE PLAN ARE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

<u>CITATION</u>	Medical and Remedial	OPTIONAL TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES
42 CFR 447.201	Care and Services	
42 CFR 447.302	Item 19 (cont)	

**REIMBURSEMENT METHODOLOGY**

~~Targeted e~~Case management services for the Infant and Toddler Program (EarlySteps) are reimbursed at a prospective rate for each approved unit of service provided to the recipient/beneficiary shall be prior authorized. -The standard unit of service covers both service provision and overhead costs. Contacts are on a one-to-one basis between a case manager and a participant or between a case manager and others when this contact is for the benefit of the participant. ~~All services must be prior authorized.~~

Reimbursement for Targeted Case Management is based on cost using an independent cost model approach to rate setting. In this approach, a model of the costs providers incur in delivering a particular service is constructed. In constructing the models, the primary cost drivers include the following:

1. Direct service staff wages;
2. Direct service staff employee related expenses (ERE);
3. The productivity of direct service staff, i.e. the amount of a direct service staff's time in each workday that can be billed;
4. Supervisory costs;
5. Key Staff costs;
6. Travel and office space costs;
7. Program support costs; and
8. Overhead expenses.

Case management agencies shall provide annual cost reports based on the state fiscal year, ~~starting with the state fiscal year July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2009~~ July 1 through June 30. Completed reports are due within 90 calendar days after the end of each state fiscal year or by September 28 of each calendar year.

Except as otherwise noted in the plan, state developed fee schedule rates are the same for both governmental and private providers of case management and the fee schedule and any annual/periodic adjustments to the fee schedule are published on the agency's provider website at [www.lamedicaid.com](http://www.lamedicaid.com). The agency's fee schedule rate was set as of May 21, 2008 and is effective for services provided on or after that date. All rates are published on the agency's website.

---

METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES--OTHER TYPES OF CARE OR SERVICE LISTED IN SECTION 1905 (A) OF THE ACT THAT ARE INCLUDED IN THE PROGRAM UNDER THE PLAN ARE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

<u>CITATION</u>	Medical and Remedial	<u>OPTIONAL TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES</u>
42 CFR 447.201	Care and Services Item 19 (continued)	

### **Reimbursement Methodology (continued)**

Payments made to targeted case management providers do not duplicate payments for the same or similar services furnished by other providers or under other authority as an administrative function or as an integral part of a covered service.

Reimbursement is not available for case management services that are furnished to ~~recipients~~beneficiaries without charge by any other agency or entity. With the statutory exceptions of case management services included in Individualized Educational Programs (IEPs) or Individualized Family Service Plans (IFSPs) and services furnished through Title V public health agencies, payment for case management services cannot be made when another third party payor is liable, nor may payments be made for services for which no payment liability is incurred by the ~~recipient~~beneficiary.

Effective for dates of service on or after September 1, 2008 the reimbursement rate for targeted case management services rendered to infants and toddlers with special needs shall be increased by 25 percent of the rate in effect on August 31, 2008.

Effective for dates of service on or after February 1, 2009, the reimbursement for case management services provided to the following targeted populations shall be reduced by 3.5 percent of the rates on file as of January 31, 2009:

1. New Opportunities Waiver (NOW) ~~recipients~~beneficiaries;
2. HIV disabled individuals; and
3. Nurse Family Partnership participants.

Effective for dates of service on or after July 1, 2012, the reimbursement for case management services provided to the following targeted populations shall be reduced by 1.5 percent of the rates on file as of June 30, 2012:

- 1) participants in the Nurse Family Partnership program;
- 2) participants in the Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment (EPSDT) program;
- 3) individuals diagnosed with HIV; and
- 4) individuals with developmental disabilities who participate in the NOW.

<u>CITATION</u>	Medical and Remedial	<u>OPTIONAL TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES</u>
-----------------	----------------------	---

---

TN# 21-0021 Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_ Effective Date August 20, 2021

Supersedes

TN# 17-0031

---

METHODS AND STANDARDS FOR ESTABLISHING PAYMENT RATES--OTHER TYPES OF CARE OR SERVICE LISTED IN SECTION 1905 (A) OF THE ACT THAT ARE INCLUDED IN THE PROGRAM UNDER THE PLAN ARE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

42 CFR                Care and Services  
447.201              Item 19 (continued)  
447.302

Effective for dates of service on or after February 1, 2013, the Department shall terminate Medicaid reimbursement of targeted case management services to first-time mothers in the Nurse Family Partnership program.

Effective for dates of service on or after February 1, 2013, reimbursement shall not be made for case management services rendered to HIV disabled individuals.

Effective for dates of service on or after July 1, 2014, reimbursement for case management services provided to participants in the NOW shall be reimbursed at a flat rate for each approved unit of service. The standard unit of service is equivalent to one month and covers both service provision and overhead costs.

Effective for dates of service on or after April 1, 2018, case management services provided to participants in the EPSDT program shall be reimbursed at a flat rate for each approved unit of service. The standard unit of service is equivalent to one month.

Effective for dates of service on or after August 20, 2021, reimbursement for services may be withheld or denied if a provider:

1.        fails to use the electronic visit verification (EVV) system; or
2.        uses the system not in compliance with Medicaid's policies and procedures for EVV.

Requirements for proper use of the EVV system are outlined in the respective program's guidelines.

---

TN# 21-0021                              Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_ Effective Date August 20, 2021  
Supersedes  
TN# 17-0031



State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

EPSDT ~~Recipients-Beneficiaries~~ on the ~~DD~~-Request for Services Registry

Target Group (42 Code of Federal Regulations 441.18(8)(i) and 441.18(9)):  
*[Describe target group and any subgroups. If any of the following differs among the subgroups, submit a separate State plan amendment describing case management services furnished; qualifications of case management providers; or methodology under which case management providers will be paid.]*

The targeted population consists of Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) recipients-beneficiaries between the ages of zero (0) and twenty-one (21) years who meet one of the following criteria:

- ~~1. On Placement on the DD-Request for Services Registry on or after October 20, 1997, and have passed the Office for Citizens with Developmental Disabilities (OCDD) Diagnosis and Evaluation (D&E) process by the later of: October 20, 1997 or the date they were placed on the DD-Request for Services Registry determined to be eligible for Office for Citizens with Developmental Disability (OCDD) services through the statement of approval process; or~~
- ~~2. On the DD-Request for Services Registry on or after October 20, 1997, but who did not have a D&E by the later of: October 20, 1997 or the date they were placed on the DD-Request for Services Registry. For those in this group who subsequently pass or passed the D&E process are eligible for these targeted case management services. Those who do not pass the D&E process meet eligibility, or who are not undergoing a D&E eligibility determination, they may still receive case management services if they meet the definition of a person with special needs. Special needs is defined as a documented, established medical condition, as determined by a licensed physician or other qualified licensed health care practitioner who is acting within the scope of practice of his/her respective licensing board(s) and/or certifications(s), that has a high probability of resulting in a developmental delay or that gives rise to a need for multiple medical, social, educational, and other services. In the case of a hearing impairment, the determination of special needs must be made by a licensed audiologist, or physician, or other qualified licensed health care practitioner who is acting within the scope of practice of his/her respective licensing board(s) and/or certifications(s).~~

\_\_\_\_ Target group includes individuals transitioning to a community setting. Case-management services will be made available for up to \_\_\_\_\_ *[insert a number; not to exceed 180]* consecutive days of a covered stay in a medical institution. The target group does not include individuals between ages 22 and 64 who are served in Institutions for Mental Disease or individuals who are inmates of public institutions). (State Medicaid Directors Letter (SMDL), July 25, 2000)

TN# 21-0021 Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_ Effective Date \_\_\_\_\_ August 20, 2021  
Supersedes TN # 08-13

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

EPSDT ~~Recipients-Beneficiaries~~ on the ~~DD~~ Request for Services Registry

Areas of State in which services will be provided (§1915(g)(1) of the Act):

XX Entire State

     Only in the following geographic areas: *[Specify areas]*

---

TN# 21-0021 Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_ Effective Date August 20, 2021  
Supersedes TN #        08-13

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

EPSDT Recipients-Beneficiaries on the ~~DD~~ Request for Services Registry

Comparability of services (§§1902(a)(10)(B) and 1915(g)(1))

- Services are provided in accordance with §1902(a)(10)(B) of the Act.  
**XX** Services are not comparable in amount duration and scope (§1915(g)(1)).

Definition of services (42 CFR 440.169): Targeted case management services are defined as services furnished to assist individuals, eligible under the State Plan, in gaining access to needed medical, social, educational and other services. Targeted Case Management includes the following assistance:

- ❖ Comprehensive assessment and periodic reassessment of individual needs, to determine the need for any medical, educational, social or other services. These assessment activities include
  - taking client history;
  - identifying the individual's needs and completing related documentation; and
  - gathering information from other sources such as family members, medical providers, social workers, and educators (if necessary), to form a complete assessment of the eligible individual;

*[Specify and justify the frequency of assessments.]*

**After the initial assessment is completed, reassessments are done annually and as needed when significant changes in circumstances occur.**
- ❖ Development (and periodic revision) of a specific care plan that is based on the information collected through the assessment that
  - specifies the goals and actions to address the medical, social, educational, and other services needed by the individual;
  - includes activities such as ensuring the active participation of the eligible individual, and working with the individual (or the individual's authorized health care decision maker) and others to develop those goals; and
  - identifies a course of action to respond to the assessed needs of the eligible individual;
- ❖ Referral and related activities (such as scheduling appointments for the individual) to help the eligible individual obtain needed services including
  - activities that help link the individual with medical, social, educational providers, or other programs and services that are capable of providing needed services to address identified needs and achieve goals specified in the care plan; and

---

TN#- 21-0021 Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_ Effective Date August 20, 2021  
Supersedes TN # 08-13

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

EPSDT ~~Recipients-Beneficiaries~~ on the ~~DD~~-Request for Services Registry

❖ Monitoring and follow-up activities:

- activities and contacts that are necessary to ensure the care plan is implemented and adequately addresses the eligible individual's needs, and which may be with the individual, family members, service providers, or other entities or individuals and conducted as frequently as necessary, and including at least one annual monitoring, to determine whether the following conditions are met:
  - services are being furnished in accordance with the individual's care plan;
  - services in the care plan are adequate; and
  - changes in the needs or status of the individual are reflected in the care plan. Monitoring and follow-up activities include making necessary adjustments in the care plan and service arrangements with providers.*[Specify the type of monitoring and justify the frequency of monitoring.]*

**A minimum of one face-to-face visit per quarter with each ~~recipient beneficiary~~ (and their guardian) is required. More frequent face-to-face visits shall be required if indicated in the ~~recipient's beneficiary's~~ Comprehensive Plan of Care. Additional face-to-face visits may be performed if needed to obtain services.**

\_\_\_ Case management includes contacts with non-eligible individuals that are directly related to identifying the eligible individual's needs and care, for the purposes of helping the eligible individual access services; identifying needs and supports to assist the eligible individual in obtaining services; providing case managers with useful feedback, and alerting case managers to changes in the eligible individual's needs.  
(42 CFR 440.169(e))

Qualifications of providers (42 CFR 441.18(a)(8)(v) and 42 CFR 441.18(b)):  
*[Specify provider qualifications that are reasonably related to the population being served and the case management services furnished.]*

Each Medicaid enrolled provider ~~must~~**shall** ensure that all staff providing case management services meets the required qualifications prior to assuming any full caseload responsibilities.

**1. Case Managers ~~must~~**shall** meet one of the following minimum education and experience qualifications:**

- Bachelor's degree ~~or master's~~ in a human service-related field, ~~such as which includes~~ psychology, education, ~~rehabilitation counseling, or counseling from an accredited college or university and one year of paid experience in a human service-related field providing direct services or case management services counseling, social services, sociology, philosophy, family and~~

---

TN# 21-0021 Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_ Effective Date August 20, 2021  
Supersedes TN # 08-13

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

EPSDT ~~Recipients-Beneficiaries~~ on the ~~DD~~-Request for Services Registry

- consumer sciences, criminal justice, rehabilitation services, child development, substance abuse, gerontology, and vocational rehabilitation; or
- Currently licensed registered nurse ~~with one year of paid experience as a registered nurse in public health or a human service-related field providing direct services or case management services~~; or
  - Bachelor's or master's degree in social work from a social work program accredited by the Council on Social Work Education.

Freedom of choice (42 CFR 441.18(a)(1)):

The State assures that the provision of case management services will not restrict an individual's free choice of providers in violation of section 1902(a)(23) of the Act.

1. Eligible individuals will have free choice of any qualified Medicaid provider within the specified geographic area identified in this plan.
2. Eligible individuals will have free choice of any qualified Medicaid providers of other medical care under the plan.

Freedom of Choice Exception (§1915(g)(1) and 42 CFR 441.18(b)):

\_\_\_\_\_ Target group consists of eligible individuals with developmental disabilities or with chronic mental illness. Providers are limited to qualified Medicaid providers of case management services capable of ensuring that individuals with developmental disabilities or with chronic mental illness receive needed services: *[Identify any limitations to be imposed on the providers and specify how these limitations enable providers to ensure that individuals within the target groups receive needed services.]*

Access to Services (42 CFR 441.18(a)(2), 42 CFR 441.18(a)(3), 42 CFR 441.18(a)(6)):

The State assures the following:

- Case management (including targeted case management) services will not be used to restrict an individual's access to other services under the plan.
- Individuals will not be compelled to receive case management services, condition receipt of case management (or targeted case management) services on the receipt of other Medicaid services, or condition receipt of other Medicaid services on receipt of case management (or targeted case management) services; and
- Providers of case management services do not exercise the agency's authority to authorize or deny the provision of other services under the plan.

Payment (42 CFR 441.18(a)(4)):

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

**TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

**EPSDT Recipients on the ~~DD~~ Request for Services Registry**

Payment for case management or targeted case management services under the plan does not duplicate payments made to public agencies or private entities under other program authorities for this same purpose.

---

TN# 21-0021 Approval Date \_\_\_\_\_ Effective Date August 20, 2021  
Supersedes TN # 08-13

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

EPSDT ~~Recipients-Beneficiaries~~ on the ~~DD~~ Request for Services Registry

Case Records (42 CFR 441.18(a)(7)):

Providers maintain case records that document for all individuals receiving case management as follows: (i) The name of the individual; (ii) The dates of the case management services; (iii) The name of the provider agency (if relevant) and the person providing the case management service; (iv) The nature, content, units of the case management services received and whether goals specified in the care plan have been achieved; (v) Whether the individual has declined services in the care plan; (vi) The need for, and occurrences of, coordination with other case managers; (vii) A timeline for obtaining needed services; (viii) A timeline for reevaluation of the plan.

Limitations:

Case management does not include, and Federal Financial Participation (FFP) is not available in expenditures for, services defined in §441.169 when the case management activities are an integral and inseparable component of another covered Medicaid service (State Medicaid Manual (SMM) 4302.F).

Case management does not include, and Federal Financial Participation (FFP) is not available in expenditures for, services defined in §441.169 when the case management activities constitute the direct delivery of underlying medical, educational, social, or other services to which an eligible individual has been referred, including for foster care programs, services such as, but not limited to, the following: research gathering and completion of documentation required by the foster care program; assessing adoption placements; recruiting or interviewing potential foster care parents; serving legal papers; home investigations; providing transportation; administering foster care subsidies; making placement arrangements. (42 CFR 441.18(c))

FFP only is available for case management services or targeted case management services if there are no other third parties liable to pay for such services, including as reimbursement under a medical, social, educational, or other program except for case management that is included in an individualized education program or individualized family service plan consistent with §1903(c) of the Act. (§§1902(a)(25) and 1905(c))

*[Specify any additional limitations.]*

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Infants and Toddlers With Special Needs

Target Group (42 Code of Federal Regulations 441.18(8)(i) and 441.18(9)):  
[Describe target group and any subgroups. If any of the following differs among the subgroups, submit a separate State plan amendment describing case management services furnished; qualifications of case management providers; or methodology under which case management providers will be paid.]

The targeted population consists of infants and toddlers from birth through age two years, inclusive (0 – 36 months) who have one of the following:

~~1.~~ a

~~1. A documented established medical condition determined by a licensed medical doctor. In the case of a hearing impairment, licensed audiologist or licensed medical doctor must make the determination; or~~

~~2.1.2.~~ A developmental delay in one or more of the following areas:

- ~~—~~ Cognitive development;
- ~~—~~ Physical development, including vision and hearing.
- Eligibility must be based on a documented diagnosis made by a licensed medical doctor (vision) or a licensed medical doctor or licensed audiologist (hearing);
- ~~—~~ Communication development;
- ~~—~~ Social or emotional development;
- ~~—~~ Adaptive development; or

~~an~~

~~3.2.~~ an eEstablished medical condition associated with a high probability of resulting in developmental delay according to the definition contained in part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Sec.635 (a) (1) [20 USC 1435 (a) (1)] and as further defined in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 303, Section 21 (infant or toddler with a disability).

~~3.~~ The case management services ~~must~~ shall be included on the beneficiary's recipient's Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP).

\_\_\_ Target group includes individuals transitioning to a community setting. Case-management services will be made available for up to \_\_\_\_\_ [insert a number; not to exceed 180] consecutive days of a covered stay in a medical institution. The target group does not include individuals between ages 22 and 64 who are served in Institutions for Mental Disease or individuals who are inmates of public institutions). (State Medicaid Directors Letter (SMDL), July 25, 2000)

Areas of State in which services will be provided (§1915(g)(1) of the Act):



State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Infants and Toddlers With Special Needs

- Entire State  
 Only in the following geographic areas: *[Specify areas]*

Comparability of services (§§1902(a)(10)(B) and 1915(g)(1))

- Services are provided in accordance with §1902(a)(10)(B) of the Act.  
 Services are not comparable in amount duration and scope (§1915(g)(1)).

Definition of services (42 CFR 440.169): Targeted case management services are defined as services furnished to assist individuals, eligible under the State Plan, in gaining access to needed medical, social, educational and other services. Targeted Case Management includes the following assistance:

- ❖ Comprehensive assessment and periodic reassessment of individual needs, to determine the need for any medical, educational, social or other services. These assessment activities include
  - taking client history;
  - identifying the individual's needs and completing related documentation; and
  - gathering information from other sources such as family members, medical providers, social workers, and educators (if necessary), to form a complete assessment of the eligible individual;

*[Specify and justify the frequency of assessments.]*

**After the initial assessment is completed, reassessments are done annually and as needed when significant changes in circumstances occur.**
- ❖ Development (and periodic revision) of a specific care plan that is based on the information collected through the assessment that
  - specifies the goals and actions to address the medical, social, educational, and other services needed by the individual;
  - includes activities such as ensuring the active participation of the eligible individual, and working with the individual (or the individual's authorized health care decision maker) and others to develop those goals; and
  - identifies a course of action to respond to the assessed needs of the eligible individual;
- ❖ Referral and related activities (such as scheduling appointments for the individual) to help the eligible individual obtain needed services including
  - activities that help link the individual with medical, social, educational providers, or other programs and services that are capable of providing needed services to address identified needs and achieve goals specified in the care plan; and

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Infants and Toddlers With Special Needs

- ❖ Monitoring and follow-up activities:
  - activities and contacts that are necessary to ensure the care plan is implemented and adequately addresses the eligible individual's needs, and which may be with the individual, family members, service providers, or other entities or individuals and conducted as frequently as necessary, and including at least one annual monitoring, to determine whether the following conditions are met:
    - services are being furnished in accordance with the individual's care plan;
    - services in the care plan are adequate; and
    - changes in the needs or status of the individual are reflected in the care plan. Monitoring and follow-up activities include making necessary adjustments in the care plan and service arrangements with providers.*[Specify the type of monitoring and justify the frequency of monitoring.]*

**A minimum of one face-to-face meeting per quarter with each ~~recipient~~beneficiary's family is required. More frequent face-to-face meetings shall be required to be performed if indicated in the ~~recipient~~beneficiary's Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP).**

\_\_\_ Case management includes contacts with non-eligible individuals that are directly related to identifying the eligible individual's needs and care, for the purposes of helping the eligible individual access services; identifying needs and supports to assist the eligible individual in obtaining services; providing case managers with useful feedback, and alerting case managers to changes in the eligible individual's needs.  
(42 CFR 440.169(e))

Qualifications of providers (42 CFR 441.18(a)(8)(v) and 42 CFR 441.18(b)):  
*[Specify provider qualifications that are reasonably related to the population being served and the case management services furnished.]*

Each Medicaid enrolled provider ~~must~~**shall** ensure that all case management services are provided by qualified individuals who meet the following licensure, education, and experience requirements:

- ~~1. Bachelor's or master's degree in a health or human service-related field from an accredited college or university; and~~
- ~~2. Two years post bachelor's/master's degree experience in a health or human services field, (master's degree in social work, or special education with certification in noncategorical preschool handicapped or other certified areas with emphasis on infants, toddlers and families may be substituted for the required two years of experience); or~~
- ~~3. Nurse registered and licensed in the state; and~~
- ~~4. Two years experience in pediatric, public health or community nursing.~~
- 1. 1. Bachelor's or master's degree in social work from a program**

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Infants and Toddlers With Special Needs

- accredited by the Council on Social Work Education; or
2. ~~2.~~—Currently licensed registered nurse (RN); or
  3. ~~3.~~—Bachelor’s or master’s degree in a human services related field, which includes psychology, education, counseling, social services, sociology, philosophy, family and consumer sciences, criminal justice, rehabilitation services, child development, substance abuse, gerontology, and vocational rehabilitation; or
  4. ~~4.~~—Bachelor’s degree in liberal arts or general studies with concentration of at least 16 hours in one of the fields listed in [No. #3](#) above.

Freedom of choice (42 CFR 441.18(a)(1):

The State assures that the provision of case management services will not restrict an individual’s free choice of providers in violation of section 1902(a)(23) of the Act.

1. Eligible individuals will have free choice of any qualified Medicaid provider within the specified geographic area identified in this plan.
2. Eligible individuals will have free choice of any qualified Medicaid providers of other medical care under the plan.

Freedom of Choice Exception (§1915(g)(1) and 42 CFR 441.18(b)):

\_\_\_\_\_ Target group consists of eligible individuals with developmental disabilities or with chronic mental illness. Providers are limited to qualified Medicaid providers of case management services capable of ensuring that individuals with developmental disabilities or with chronic mental illness receive needed services: *[Identify any limitations to be imposed on the providers and specify how these limitations enable providers to ensure that individuals within the target groups receive needed services.]*

Access to Services (42 CFR 441.18(a)(2), 42 CFR 441.18(a)(3), 42 CFR 441.18(a)(6):

The State assures the following:

- Case management (including targeted case management) services will not be used to restrict an individual’s access to other services under the plan.
- Individuals will not be compelled to receive case management services, condition receipt of case management (or targeted case management) services on the receipt of other Medicaid services, or condition receipt of other Medicaid services on receipt of case management (or targeted case management) services; and
- Providers of case management services do not exercise the agency’s authority to authorize or deny the provision of other services under the plan.

Payment (42 CFR 441.18(a)(4)):

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

**TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

**Infants and Toddlers With Special Needs**

Payment for case management or targeted case management services under the plan does not duplicate payments made to public agencies or private entities under other program authorities for this same purpose.

Case Records (42 CFR 441.18(a)(7)):

Providers maintain case records that document for all individuals receiving case management as follows: (i) The name of the individual; (ii) The dates of the case management services; (iii) The name of the provider agency (if relevant) and the person providing the case management service; (iv) The nature, content, units of the case management services received and whether goals specified in the care plan have been achieved; (v) Whether the individual has declined services in the care plan; (vi) The need for, and occurrences of, coordination with other case managers; (vii) A timeline for obtaining needed services; (viii) A timeline for reevaluation of the plan.

Limitations:

Case management does not include, and Federal Financial Participation (FFP) is not available in expenditures for, services defined in §441.169 when the case management activities are an integral and inseparable component of another covered Medicaid service (State Medicaid Manual (SMM) 4302.F).

Case management does not include, and Federal Financial Participation (FFP) is not available in expenditures for, services defined in §441.169 when the case management activities constitute the direct delivery of underlying medical, educational, social, or other services to which an eligible individual has been referred, including for foster care programs, services such as, but not limited to, the following: research gathering and completion of documentation required by the foster care program; assessing adoption placements; recruiting or interviewing potential foster care parents; serving legal papers; home investigations; providing transportation; administering foster care subsidies; making placement arrangements. (42 CFR 441.18(c))

FFP only is available for case management services or targeted case management services if there are no other third parties liable to pay for such services, including as reimbursement under a medical, social, educational, or other program except for case management that is included in an individualized education program or individualized family service plan consistent with §1903(c) of the Act. (§§1902(a)(25) and 1905(c))

*[Specify any additional limitations.]*

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

NOW Waiver ~~Recipient~~Beneficiaries

Target Group (42 Code of Federal Regulations 441.18(8)(i) and 441.18(9)):  
*[Describe target group and any subgroups. If any of the following differs among the subgroups, submit a separate State plan amendment describing case management services furnished; qualifications of case management providers; or methodology under which case management providers will be paid.]*

The targeted population consists of individuals with ~~developmental~~ intellectual or developmental disabilities who are participants the New Opportunities Waiver (NOW) program. The NOW waiver is a 1915(c) waiver and all participants meet the requirement of the waiver.

\_\_\_ Target group includes individuals transitioning to a community setting. Case-management services will be made available for up to \_\_\_\_\_ *[insert a number; not to exceed 180]* consecutive days of a covered stay in a medical institution. The target group does not include individuals between ages 22 and 64 who are served in Institutions for Mental Disease or individuals who are inmates of public institutions). (State Medicaid Directors Letter (SMDL), July 25, 2000)

Areas of State in which services will be provided (§1915(g)(1) of the Act):

XX Entire State

\_\_\_ Only in the following geographic areas: *[Specify areas]*

Comparability of services (§§1902(a)(10)(B) and 1915(g)(1))

\_\_\_ Services are provided in accordance with §1902(a)(10)(B) of the Act.

XX Services are not comparable in amount duration and scope (§1915(g)(1)).

Definition of services (42 CFR 440.169): Targeted case management services are defined as services furnished to assist individuals, eligible under the State Plan, in gaining access to needed medical, social, educational and other services. Targeted Case Management includes the following assistance:

- ❖ Comprehensive assessment and periodic reassessment of individual needs, to determine the need for any medical, educational, social or other services. These assessment activities include
  - taking client history;
  - identifying the individual's needs and completing related documentation; and
  - gathering information from other sources such as family members, medical providers, social workers, and educators (if necessary), to form a complete assessment of the eligible individual;

---

TN 21-0021 Approval Date Effective Date August 20, 2021  
Supersedes TN 08-13

## State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act

State/Territory: Louisiana

## TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

NOW Waiver ~~Recipient~~Beneficiaries*[Specify and justify the frequency of assessments.]***After the initial assessment is completed, reassessments are done annually and as needed when significant changes in circumstances occur.**

- ❖ Development (and periodic revision) of a specific care plan that is based on the information collected through the assessment that
  - specifies the goals and actions to address the medical, social, educational, and other services needed by the individual;
  - includes activities such as ensuring the active participation of the eligible individual, and working with the individual (or the individual's authorized health care decision maker) and others to develop those goals; and
  - identifies a course of action to respond to the assessed needs of the eligible individual;
- ❖ Referral and related activities (such as scheduling appointments for the individual) to help the eligible individual obtain needed services including
  - activities that help link the individual with medical, social, educational providers, or other programs and services that are capable of providing needed services to address identified needs and achieve goals specified in the care plan; and
- ❖ Monitoring and follow-up activities:
  - activities and contacts that are necessary to ensure the care plan is implemented and adequately addresses the eligible individual's needs, and which may be with the individual, family members, service providers, or other entities or individuals and conducted as frequently as necessary, and including at least one annual monitoring, to determine whether the following conditions are met:
    - services are being furnished in accordance with the individual's care plan;
    - services in the care plan are adequate; and
    - changes in the needs or status of the individual are reflected in the care plan. Monitoring and follow-up activities include making necessary adjustments in the care plan and service arrangements with providers.

*[Specify the type of monitoring and justify the frequency of monitoring.]***A minimum of one home visit per quarter to each ~~recipient~~beneficiary is required. More frequent home visits shall be required to be performed if indicated in the ~~recipient~~beneficiary's Comprehensive Plan of Care.**

State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

NOW Waiver ~~Recipient~~Beneficiaries

Case management includes contacts with non-eligible individuals that are directly related to identifying the eligible individual's needs and care, for the purposes of helping the eligible individual access services; identifying needs and supports to assist the eligible individual in obtaining services; providing case managers with useful feedback, and alerting case managers to changes in the eligible individual's needs.  
(42 CFR 440.169(e))

Qualifications of providers (42 CFR 441.18(a)(8)(v) and 42 CFR 441.18(b)):  
*[Specify provider qualifications that are reasonably related to the population being served and the case management services furnished.]*

Each Medicaid enrolled provider must ensure that all staff providing case management services meets the required qualifications prior to assuming any full caseload responsibilities.

Case Managers must meet one of the following minimum education and experience qualifications:

- ~~1. Bachelor's degree or master's degree in a human service-related field, ~~such as which includes~~ psychology, education, counseling, social services, sociology, philosophy, family and consumer sciences, criminal justice, rehabilitation services, child development, substance abuse, gerontology, and vocational rehabilitation ~~psychology, education, rehabilitation counseling, or counseling from an accredited college or university and one year of paid experience in a human service-related field providing direct services or case management services; or~~~~
- ~~1. 1.~~
- ~~2. 2. Licensed Currently licensed registered nurse ~~with one year of paid experience as a registered nurse in public health or a human service-related field providing direct services or case management services; or~~~~
- ~~2. 2.~~
- ~~3. 3. A bachelor's degree in liberal arts or general studies with a concentration of at least 16 hours in one of the fields listed in ~~the No. #1;~~ or~~
- ~~4. 4. Bachelor or master's degree in social work from a program accredited by the Council on Social Work Education. ~~Bachelor's or master's degree in social work from a social work program accredited by the Council on Social Work Education.~~~~

Freedom of choice (42 CFR 441.18(a)(1):

**State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act**  
**State/Territory: Louisiana**

**TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

**NOW Waiver ~~Recipients~~Beneficiaries**

The State assures that the provision of case management services will not restrict an individual's free choice of providers in violation of section 1902(a)(23) of the Act.

1. Eligible individuals will have free choice of any qualified Medicaid provider within the specified geographic area identified in this plan.
2. Eligible individuals will have free choice of any qualified Medicaid providers of other medical care under the plan.

Freedom of Choice Exception (§1915(g)(1) and 42 CFR 441.18(b)):

\_\_\_\_\_ Target group consists of eligible individuals with developmental disabilities or with chronic mental illness. Providers are limited to qualified Medicaid providers of case management services capable of ensuring that individuals with developmental disabilities or with chronic mental illness receive needed services: *[Identify any limitations to be imposed on the providers and specify how these limitations enable providers to ensure that individuals within the target groups receive needed services.]*

Access to Services (42 CFR 441.18(a)(2), 42 CFR 441.18(a)(3), 42 CFR 441.18(a)(6)):

The State assures the following:

- Case management (including targeted case management) services will not be used to restrict an individual's access to other services under the plan.
- Individuals will not be compelled to receive case management services, condition receipt of case management (or targeted case management) services on the receipt of other Medicaid services, or condition receipt of other Medicaid services on receipt of case management (or targeted case management) services; and
- Providers of case management services do not exercise the agency's authority to authorize or deny the provision of other services under the plan.

Payment (42 CFR 441.18(a)(4)):

Payment for case management or targeted case management services under the plan does not duplicate payments made to public agencies or private entities under other program authorities for this same purpose.

Case Records (42 CFR 441.18(a)(7)):

Providers maintain case records that document for all individuals receiving case management as follows: (i) The name of the individual; (ii) The dates of the case management services; (iii) The name of the provider agency (if relevant) and the person providing the case management service; (iv) The nature, content, units of the case management services received and whether goals specified in the care plan have been achieved; (v) Whether the individual has declined services in the care plan; (vi) The need for, and occurrences of, coordination with other case managers; (vii) A timeline for obtaining needed services; (viii) A timeline for reevaluation of the plan.



State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act  
State/Territory: Louisiana

TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

NOW Waiver ~~Recipient~~Beneficiaries

Limitations:

Case management does not include, and Federal Financial Participation (FFP) is not available in expenditures for, services defined in §441.169 when the case management activities are an integral and inseparable component of another covered Medicaid service (State Medicaid Manual (SMM) 4302.F).

Case management does not include, and Federal Financial Participation (FFP) is not available in expenditures for, services defined in §441.169 when the case management activities constitute the direct delivery of underlying medical, educational, social, or other services to which an eligible individual has been referred, including for foster care programs, services such as, but not limited to, the following: research gathering and completion of documentation required by the foster care program; assessing adoption placements; recruiting or interviewing potential foster care parents; serving legal papers; home investigations; providing transportation; administering foster care subsidies; making placement arrangements. (42 CFR 441.18(c))

FFP only is available for case management services or targeted case management services if there are no other third parties liable to pay for such services, including as reimbursement under a medical, social, educational, or other program except for case management that is included in an individualized education program or individualized family service plan consistent with §1903(c) of the Act. (§§1902(a)(25) and 1905(c))

*[Specify any additional limitations.]*